PENSIONS COMMITTEE
Date:

Wednesday 12 January 2022

Time:

6.30 pm

Venue:

Committee Room (B6) - Lambeth Town Hall, Birxton, London SW2 1RW*

*In line with legislation and continuing Covid-19 precautions, committee members will attend the meeting
in person at Lambeth Town Hall, with members of the public and press, visiting members and officers
invited to attend virtually. Instructions overleaf.
Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Mary Atkins, Councillor Anna Birley (Chair), Councillor Pete Elliott, Councillor John Kazantzis
and Councillor Iain Simpson

Co-optees
Shankar Siva Ananthan, Sheila La Touche and Peter Woodward

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Marianna Ritchie, Telephone: 020 7926 8640; Email: mritchie@lambeth.gov.uk

Published on: Wednesday 5 January 2022

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How to access the meeting
In line with legislation, Committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.
Reflecting current government guidance to help prevent the spread of Covid-19, members of the public,
visiting Members and officers are invited to attend virtually. If you wish to attend the meeting in person,
public access can be made available for limited numbers, but please contact Democratic Services
(details on the front sheet of the agenda or Democracy@lambeth.gov.uk) before the meeting so that
arrangements can be made.

For Members of the Public
If you want to watch the live broadcast, this meeting is available to view as a Microsoft Teams Live
Event. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking here will take you to the meeting page where you will
be prompted to download the app or watch on the web instead. Please follow the instructions to watch
on the web. On doing so, you can join our live event anonymously.
Members of the public wishing to make representations at this meeting must inform Democratic Services
(see front page for contact details) by 12pm on Tuesday 11 January.

For Members of the Committee
In line with legislation, committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.

For elected Members of the Council
Councillors who are not members of the Committee but wish to attend the meeting must inform
Democratic Services by 12pm on Tuesday 11 January. Upon doing so they will be invited to attend the
meeting virtually.

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office).
Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of
reasons including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, and you should aim to
arrive at least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 or the number on the front
page.

Directions to Lambeth Town Hall, London, SW2 1RW
Lambeth Town Hall is located at the southern end of Brixton Road and is a highly visible landmark. It can
be accessed via a number of bus routes and is a short walk from both Brixton Station and Brixton
Underground Station.

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING

Special Circumstances Justifying Urgent Consideration
The Chair is of the opinion that although this report had not been available for at least five clear
days before the meeting, nonetheless it should be considered now as a matter of urgency
because of the special circumstances that the Committee can adequately discharge its
responsibilities in relation to the Lambeth Pension Fund.

Page
Nos.
1

Declarations of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct
(para.4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a
committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from
the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that matter
and must not participate in any vote on that matter unless a
dispensation has been obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

2

Minutes of the Previous Meeting and Action Log and Work
Programme
To approve the minutes of the meeting held 6 October 2021.

1 - 12

3

Investment Performance Review - Q3 2021
Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

13 - 30

4

General Update January 2022
Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

31 - 42

5

ESG Beliefs - Survey Results
Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

43 - 72

6

Investment Performance (Manager) Report - Q3 2021
Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

73 - 108

7

Invesco Presentation - January 2022
Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

109 - 112

8

UK Social and Affordable Housing
Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394

113 - 138

402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

PENSIONS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Wednesday 6 October 2021 at 6.30 pm
Committee Room (B6) - Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton, London, SW2 1RW

Members Present:

Councillor Mary Atkins, Councillor Anna Birley (Chair), Councillor Pete
Elliott and Councillor John Kazantzis

Co-optees Present:

Shankar Siva Ananthan and Peter Woodward

Apologies:

Councillor Iain Simpson

1

Declarations of Pecuniary Interests
There were no declarations of pecuniary interest.

2

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
The minutes of the meeting held on 7 July 2021 were agreed as an accurate record of
proceedings.

3

Investment Performance Report - Q2 2021
Hamant Bharadia, Assistant Director of Strategic Finance, and Tony English, the
representative from Mercer, introduced the report, explaining that the Fund had
performed well again in this quarter.
Members expressed concerns around the Fund’s investments in the Private Rented
Sector property market, as there was a housing crisis in Lambeth. Officers agreed to
arrange for a representative from Invesco to brief the Committee on these investments.
Members agreed to send any questions around this to Rob Browning, Head of Treasury
and Pensions.
APPROVED:
That the report, together with the information in the accompanying performance report,
be noted.

4

Risk Register - September 2021
APPROVED:

Page 2
To note and review the Lambeth Pension Fund Risk Register and the additional actions
proposed to mitigate risk.

5

Training Policy and Plan - October 2021
Officers confirmed that they would be doing a skills audit and made a request to
Members to email any specific training requirements to them.
The Chair requested that any training opportunities be offered to all councillors and not
just those currently involved with Pensions, as the upcoming Borough Council elections
may lead to new committee members. The Chair also requested that officers highlighted
any training sessions that were particularly helpful for members.
APPROVED:
1. That the Training Policy be approved.
2. That the suggested Training Plan be noted.
3. That members commit to undertaking a skills audit and return results to officers
before the May elections, with a view to reassessing this after May 2022.

6

UK Stewardship Code
Officers explained that the Lambeth Pension Fund was not likely to be accepted into the
Stewardship Code as it was lacking in some areas of the twelve principles. In
comparison, much larger funds with more resources were able to achieve more of the
required targets. The Pensions team would make a number of amendments before
applying to be a signatory of the Stewardship Code at the end of October 2021.
The Chair extended the Committee’s thanks to officers for their work on this, and
requested that members send their comments to the Chair before the 31 October
deadline.
APPROVED:
1. That the Committee review and provide feedback where relevant on the Fund’s
draft UK Stewardship Code report.
2. That the Committee delegate to the Chair the approval and sign-off of the
amended report before the October 31 deadline.

7

General Update - October 2021
In response to the Pensions Board’s queries the Committee discussed the need for
more context around the Mercer Environmental Social and Governance (ESG) ratings
assigned to the Fund’s managers, and the benchmarking of those ratings to other
managers, which Mercer agreed to provide. The Committee also asked that officers
explore alternative measures of ESG output to measure a manager’s ESG credentials.

Page 3
The Committee agreed to respond to the Board’s queries but requested that a more
detailed discussion on the mechanisms for measuring ESG factors be held before
providing a response, preferably involving the Pensions Board and held before the next
Committee meeting so that the results of those discussions could be recognised as part
of the formal agenda.
APPROVED:
1. That the Committee respond to the recommendations and requests for
information from the Pensions Board as asset out at section 2.10.
2. That the remainder of the report, together with the information in the
accompanying papers, be noted.

8

LDI Hedging Review
RESOLVED:
Unanimously that members of the Press and Public be excluded from the remainder of
the meeting under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds
that: (i) it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3
(Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information)) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act:
and (ii) that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public
interest in disclosing the information.

9

Climate Change Scenario Analysis
RESOLVED:
Unanimously that members of the Press and Public be excluded from the remainder of
the meeting under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds
that: (i) it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3
(Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information)) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act:
and (ii) that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public
interest in disclosing the information.

10

Investment Performance (Manager) Report - Q2 2021
RESOLVED:
Unanimously that members of the Press and Public be excluded from the remainder of
the meeting under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds
that: (i) it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3
(Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information)) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act:
and (ii) that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public

Page 4
interest in disclosing the information.

The meeting ended at 8.55 pm
CHAIR
PENSIONS COMMITTEE
Wednesday 15 December 2021
Date of Despatch: Thursday 14 October 2021
Contact for Enquiries: Marianna Ritchie
Tel: 020 7926 8640
E-mail: mritchie@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Pensions Committee Action Monitoring
Outstanding Actions
Meeting Date

Agenda Item Description
Item

Action

Owner

Due Date

Latest Update

06-Oct-2021

7

General Update

Robert
Browning

Mar-2022

To be arranged

06-Oct-2021

10

Investment
Performance
(Manager) Report –
Q2 2021

Officers to arrange an informal
workshop for the Committee,
Board, and advisers to discuss
wider ESG issues, net zero
Mercer to provide wider context
on their ESG ratings, officers to
present to members a paper on
alternative measures of ESG

Robert
Browning

Mar-2022

Page 7

Completed Actions
Agenda Item Description
Item

Action

Owner

Due Date

Latest Update

08-Jul-2020

8

LCIV Quarterly Update

Officers to circulate to members
the Brunel report on ESG of
pooled funds.

Robert
Browning

July-2021

Emailed to Members 09-Jul-2021.

20-Nov-2019

8

Action Log and Work
Programme

To conduct LDI and local
investment strategy training
sessions once consultation was
concluded.

Robert
Browning

Sept-2020

LDI Training delivered on 16-Jul-2021.

06-Oct-2021

9

Climate Change
Scenario Analysis

Officers to write to the London
CIV for clarity on their net zero
targets

Robert
Browning

Jan-2022

07-Jul-2021

2

Minutes

Officers to distribute a timeline for
the drafting and/or updating of the
Fund’s Rebalancing Policy.

Robert
Browning

Postmeeting

Mercer have liaised on the Fund’s behalf
but assurances on credibility of targets not
yet received. Officers will pursue for further
clarity.
Sent to members 01-Oct-21

7-Jul-2021

3
4

Robert
Browning
Robert
Browning

Postmeeting
Mar-2022

07-Jul-2021

5

Officers to circulate document on
ESG
Officers to report on potential
impacts of climate change
policies in 2022 valuation
Present a timeline/plan for
rebalancing the Fund’s
overweight equity allocation.

Email sent to members 09-Jul-21

7-Jul-2021

Action Log and Work
Programme
Lambeth Pension
Fund – Funding Issues
Update
Investment
Performance Report Q1 2021

Robert
Browning

Oct-2021

Completed in August 2021 – Committee
updated at October 2021 meeting

Page 8

Meeting Date

7-Jul-2021

6

Business Plan 2021/22

Officers circulate LCIV
Stewardship report
Officers present a formal training
plan
Present a timeline for expected
drawdown of Private Debt
commitments.

Robert
Browning
Robert
Browning
Robert
Browning

Postmeeting
Oct-2021

Email sent to members 09-Jul-21

7-Jul-2021

8

07-Jul-2021

5

General Update – July
2021
Investment
Performance Report Q1 2021

Oct-2021

Information provided in Investment
Performance Report from October 2021
onwards

24-Mar-2021

6

Carbon Metrics
Analysis

The Committee requested carbon
literacy/decarbonisation/net zero
training.

Robert
Browning

Oct-2021

Training delivered 24-Sep-21

24-Mar-2021

11

LCIV Quarterly Update

Officers to circulate the correct
London CIV structure chart to the
Committee.

Robert
Browning

July-2021

Sent to members 01-Oct-21

Presented at October 2021 meeting

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Wednesday 7 July 2021
Start time 18:30
Lead Officer/ Author
Democratic Services
Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning

Report Title
Action Log and Work Programme
Lambeth Pension Fund – Funding Issues Update
Investment Performance Report – Q1 2021
Business Plan 2021/22
Draft Annual Report 2020/21
General Update – July 2021
Investment Performance (Manager) Report – Q1 2021
LCIV Multi Asset Credit Fund

Comments (part II)

Part II
Part II

Lead Officer/ Author
Democratic Services
Robert Browning
Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning
Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning

Report Title
Action Log and Work Programme
Investment Performance Report – Q2 2021
Pension Fund Risk Register
Training Policy and Programme
Climate Change Strategy
Stewardship Code Report
General Update – October 2021
Investment Performance (Manager) Report – Q2 2021

Comments (part II)

Part II

Page 11

Wednesday 6 October 2021
Start time 18:30

Wednesday 12 January 2022
Start time 18:30
Lead Officer/ Author
Democratic Services
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning

Report Title
Action Log and Work Programme
Investment Performance Review – Q3 2021
General Update January 2022
ESG Beliefs – Survey Results
Investment Performance (Manager) Report – Q3 2021
Invesco Presentation – January 2022
UK Social and Affordable Housing

Comments (part II)

Part II
Part II
Part II

Lead Officer/ Author
Democratic Services
Robert Browning
Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning

Report Title
Action Log and Work Programme
Investment Performance Report – Q4 2021
Pension Fund Risk Register
Closing and Audit Plan – 2021/22
General Update – March 2022
Investment Performance (Manager) Report – Q4 2021

Comments (part II)

Part II

Page 12

Wednesday 16 March 2022 (TBC)
Start time 18:30

Page 13

Agenda Item 3

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 12 JANUARY 2022
Report title: Lambeth Pension Fund – Investment Performance Review – 30
September 2021
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director for Finance and Investment: Fiona
McDermott
Contact for Enquiries: Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
The Pensions Committee considers fund managers' performance on a quarterly
basis in order to assess the performance of the council's Pension Fund investments
and the market outlook.
This report informs members of the fund managers’ performance as measured by
Mercer, the Fund's investment adviser, and keeps members up to date on managing
the implemented investment strategy, including any rebalancing required to maintain
the strategic asset allocation.
FINANCE SUMMARY
For the quarter ended 30 September 2021, the pension fund costs in respect of fund
managers’ fees totalled £1,930,630.98 of which only £1,289.48 was remitted; the
remainder was deducted in the daily pricing of the individual portfolio’s net asset
value. The Fund meets all fees and there are no additional financial implications for
the Council.

1.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the report, together with the information in the accompanying performance
report, be noted.

Page 14
1
1.1

CONTEXT
The Pensions Committee reviews the performance of the Fund investments and
administration on a quarterly basis and considers the market outlook. In addition, the
Committee considers Fund arrangements and pension policy issues in line with its
investment strategy. The following narrative summarises the investment performance
report from Mercer, with additional updates on rebalancing and funding levels.

2

PROPOSALS AND REASONS

2.1

Performance to 30 September 2021
The market value of the Fund’s assets at 30 September 2021 was £1,890.2m, an
increase of £10.5m, or 0.6%, over the previous quarter (£1,879.7m as at 30 June
2021).

2.2

The Fund slightly underperformed against benchmark performance over the quarter
to 30 September 2021; the main detractors to performance were the Baillie Gifford
global equity fund (returning -0.6% against a benchmark of 1.5%) and the Invesco
UK PRS fund (returning 2.3% against a benchmark of 4.2%). The sustainable global
equity fund managed by RBC continues to outperform its benchmark, returning 3.8%
in the last quarter against a benchmark of 2.4%, whilst the emerging market equity
fund managed by J. P. Morgan also performed above benchmark expectations
(returning -3.3% against -5.8%).

2.3

Despite the marginal dip in the quarter, the Fund continues to outperform its overall
benchmark over a one-year, three-year and five-year period; performance over the
one-year and three-year periods was 2.2% ahead of benchmark, whilst over the fiveyear period was 1.3% ahead.

2.4

The full performance report from Mercer is attached at Appendix One; the table
below summarises asset class performance over three months, one year, three
years, and five years.

Asset Class

Global Equity
Emerging
Markets
Equity
Property
UK PRS
Property
Multi-Asset
Credit

Last Quarter
Last Year
Fund B’mark Fund B’mark

Last 3 Years
Fund B’mark
(%
(%
p.a.)
p.a.)

Last 5 Years
Fund B’mark
(%
(%
p.a.)
p.a.)

(%)

(%)

(%)

(%)

1.3

2.0

24.3

23.1

20.1

11.9

18.3

12.9

(3.3)

(5.8)

16.8

13.3

8.1

7.4

-

-

2.4

2.0

(1.8)

8.0

(0.1)

8.0

2.7

8.0

2.3

4.2

3.6

11.5

-

-

-

-

0.9

1.0

10.0

4.1

3.6

4.5

-

-

Page 15

Asset Class

Last Quarter
Last Year
Fund B’mark Fund B’mark

Last 3 Years
Fund B’mark
(%
(%
p.a.)
p.a.)

Last 5 Years
Fund B’mark
(%
(%
p.a.)
p.a.)

(%)

(%)

(%)

(%)

Private Debt

1.4

1.0

3.7

4.1

-

-

-

-

LDI

2.7

2.7

(0.6)

(0.5)

(4.4)

(4.3)

-

-

1.0

1.1

13.1

10.9

10.0

7.8

8.6

7.3

Total (exAdams Street)

Notes on table:
 Figures shown are net of fees and based on performance provided by the
investment managers, Mercer estimates and Thomson Reuters Datastream.
 For periods over one year the figures in the table above have been
annualised.
 Total scheme returns include quarterly returns for Private Debt calculated by
Mercer using a Modified Dietz approach based on data provided by Churchill,
Invesco and Thomson Reuters Datastream; this approach takes into account
the timing of cash flows during the period, assuming a constant rate of return,
and is widely used in the investment management industry. Over the long-term
returns are chain linked using quarterly Total Fund returns, an approach which
simply takes the product of returns over several periods.
 Property benchmark return taken as an absolute return target of 8% p.a. for
performance measurement purposes.
 Multi-Asset Credit benchmark returns taken as 3 Month Sterling LIBOR +4%
p.a. for performance measurement purposes.
 UK Private Rented Sector Property and Private Debt figures shown for all
periods are calculated by Mercer using a Modified Dietz approach over each
period and are based on data provided by Churchill, Invesco and Thomson
Reuters Datastream.

2.5

2.6

Rebalancing and Investment Strategy Update
As at 30 September 2021 the Fund’s overall allocation to property remained
underweight by 6.3% whilst cash was approximately 7.3% over benchmark allocation
as a result of equity sales in August, undertaken to rebalance the overweight global
equity position. In addition, whilst the multi-asset credit and private debt allocations
are over and underweight respectively, the Fund’s warehousing policy agreed as part
of its revised investment strategy in March 2020 will see funds drawn down from
multi-asset credit holdings to finance private debt commitments as and when they fall
due.
As at 30 September 2021 approximately £56m (or 75%) of the Fund’s original £75m
commitment to its two private debt managers, Churchill and Permira, had been
called. Subscription to the new Permira fund was accepted in late November which
completes the onboarding process to the two new private debt funds as agreed by
the Committee in March 2021. Including the new commitments, total capital called as

Page 16
at 30 September was approximately £59m, or 30% of commitments. The Committee
is reminded that the investment period of these funds is up to three years from final
close, with the total term expected to last up to eight years; as such, the underallocation to private debt against the strategic allocation is likely to continue for the
medium-term.

2.7

2.8

2.9

Fund Management Fees
For the quarter ended 30 September 2021 the costs in respect of fund managers’
fees totalled £1,930,630.98 of which only £1,289.48 was remitted; the remainder was
deducted in the daily pricing of the individual portfolio’s net asset value. Fees are
calculated on market value of the portfolio as at the end of the quarter after adjusting
for changes in capital value. All fees are met by the Pension Fund.
Fossil Fuel Exposure
As at 30 September 2021 the Fund’s direct exposure to fossil fuels was nil; indirect
exposure was estimated at 0.65% of the Fund, or £12.3m. Further information is
provided elsewhere in this agenda under the Investment Performance (Managers)
report.
Funding Level as at 30 September 2021
The funding level at the last formal valuation as at 31 March 2019 was 82%. The
actuary’s estimated funding level as at 30 September 2021 had improved to 97%, an
increase of approximately 15% over the current valuation period and due largely to
an excess return on assets. However, it should be noted that market reactions to the
Chancellor’s announcement on RPI reform have indicated their estimate of long-term
CPI may be viewed as optimistic; as a result, the true underlying funding level may
be slightly lower than indicated in this update.

3
3.1

FINANCE
This report outlines the financial performance of the Pension Fund over the quarter to
30 September 2021. There are no further financial implications in agreeing to the
recommendations in this report.

4
4.1

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
The Lambeth Pension Fund is run in accordance with the Local Government Pension
Scheme Regulations 2013 enacted along with other Regulations under the
Superannuation Act 1972 and the Public Service Pension Act 2013, and is for the
benefit of Council employees and outside organisations which have entered into an
agreement with Lambeth to provide pensions for their staff.

4.2

The Pension Committee must be mindful of their fiduciary duty to obtain the best
possible financial return on the investments it administers within the investment
strategy framework.

4.3

There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.

Page 17
5
5.1

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
Not Applicable.

6
6.1

RISK MANAGEMENT
Investment decisions involve taking risks that Members of the Committee should
always bear in mind. Generally, risk is taken to mean the variability of returns.
Investments with greater risk must usually promise higher returns than more ‘stable’
investments before investors will buy them. Members must consider the risk/reward
trade-off; generally, the higher the potential return expected the higher the associated
risk. Members in their capacity as Trustees bear that risk.

7
7.1

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
None for the purposes of this report.

8
8.1

COMMUNITY SAFETY
None for the purposes of this report.

9

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
None for the purposes of this report.

9.2

Health
None for the purposes of this report.

9.3

Corporate Parenting
None for the purposes of this report.

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
None for the purposes of this report.

9.5

Responsible Procurement
None for the purposes of this report.

10
10.1

TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
Not Applicable.

Page 18
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Andrew
Wilson, Cabinet
Member
Dami Awobajo,
Acting Strategic
Director
Christina Thompson,
Director of Finance
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director of
Finance
Andrew Pavlou,
Legal Services
Marianna Ritchie,
Democratic Services
Mercer (External)

Lambeth
directorate/
division or
partner

Date Sent

Date
Received

Finance and
Performance

20.12.2021

20.12.2021

Finance and
Investment

20.12.2021

05.01.2022

Finance and
Investment

20.12.2021

20.12.2021

Finance and
Investment

20.12.2021

29.12.2021

20.12.2021

22.12.2021

20.12.2021

22.12.2021

20.12.2021

20.12.2021

Legal and
Democratic
Services
Legal and
Democratic
Services
Consultant

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet
Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from
Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

Comments
in para:

N/A
17 December 2021
5 January 2022
No
No
N/A
N/A
N/A
 Appendix One – Lambeth Pension
Fund Investment Performance Report
September 2021

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Page 23

Page 24

Page 25

Growth Assets - Index Performance
2.2

UK Equities

Sterling Return

1.5

Global Equity

-0.2

Local Currency Return

2.0

Overseas Equities

0.3
2.7

US Equities

0.3
0.8
0.4

Europe (ex-UK) Equities

7.0

Japanese Equities

5.0

-3.2
-3.1
-4.3
-5.6

Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Equities

Emerging Markets Equities

1.1

Global Small Cap Equities
Hedge Funds

Page 26

-0.6
-0.2
-0.1
2.1

High Yield Bonds

0.2
-0.7
-0.2

Emerging Market Debt

4.6

Property

7.8

Commodities

5.2

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

Total Return (%)
Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream.

Defensive Assets - Index Performance
-2.8

Over 15 Year Gilts

Sterling Return

2.3

Over 5 Year Index-Linked Gilts

Local Currency Return

1.4

Global Bonds

-0.1
-1.0

UK Credit

1.7

Global Credit

-0.7
0.1
0.0
0.0

Eurozone Government Bonds
Cash

-10
Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream.

-5

0

5

Total Return (%)

10

15

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 31

Agenda Item 4

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 12 JANUARY 2022
Report title: Lambeth Pension Fund – General Update January 2022
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director for Finance and Investment: Fiona
McDermott
Contact for Enquiries: Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
This paper provides members with an update on several general pensions related
matters to have arisen since the last meeting.

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in this
report.

1.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the report, together with the information in the accompanying papers, be noted.

Page 32
1
1.1

CONTEXT
The Pensions Committee is responsible for ensuring that the Fund is properly
operated in accordance with all relevant legislation and best practice as advised by
the Pensions Regulator, the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), Scheme
Advisory Board (SAB), the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
(DLUHC) and the Chartered Institute of Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), including
both financial and administration matters.

1.2

The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on a number of pensions
related matters to have arisen since the last meeting and of relevance to the Fund,
including standing items on the London CIV, the Pensions Board and training
opportunities.

2

PROPOSALS AND REASONS

2.1

LONDON CIV
Funding and Fee Savings
The most recent London CIV (LCIV) Business Update call took place on 16
December 2021, during which updates were provided on their current fund launch
activity and new fund launch pipeline; the current fund offering is attached at
Appendix One for information.

2.2

As at 30 November 2021 the LCIV had £13.5bn of assets under direct management
(approximately £15.2bn including commitments). The Lambeth Fund is a key
stakeholder in the LCIV, with approximately £1.07bn or 57% of the Fund’s active
assets invested directly in the pool as at 30 September 2021, one of the highest
proportions of total Fund assets compared to other London boroughs.

2.3

The estimated net fee savings for the half year as at 30 September 2021 is £631k,
which represents an estimate of additional fees that would have been paid if invested
outside of the LCIV. The full year net fee savings forecast for 2021/22, after
accounting for LCIV management fees and service charges, is approximately £1.2m
(£938k in 2020/21).

2.4

The LCIV recently launched its new passive equity fund, “PEPPA” (Progressive
Equity Passive Paris Aligned), at the beginning of December with £540m of
investment across two client funds, and its next expected fund launch will be an
alternative credit fund in January 2022. The LCIV is also planning to run a property
workshop in January 2022 to discuss with client funds their interest in launching an
as-yet-undefined property fund, which will be attended by Lambeth officers.

2.5

Governance Update
The LCIV Board and Shareholder Committee have reviewed the LCIV’s draft annual
budget for 2022/23 and recommended its approval at the AGM in January 2022.
Whilst fixed fees charged to client funds will remain unchanged, it is expected that
management fee income will increase as a result of existing asset under

Page 33
management growth and expected future investment, which will offset the anticipated
increase to LCIV costs. The budget recognises that an increase in resources is
required to support the ongoing development of the LCIV in terms of new fund
launches and greater operational complexity, and that compared to other pools the
LCIV operates with disproportionately fewer resources, both financially and in terms
of staffing.
2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

In November 2021 the LCIV released to client funds its Investment Governance
Document (IGD) which describes the procedures undertaken by its investment team
to ensure the interests of client funds are protected, how it exercises investment
oversight over the managers it has delegated authority to, and how its regulatory
responsibilities have been exercised. The IGD has been approved by the LCIV’s
Executive Committee and will serve as a live document available to client funds via
the LCIV’s online portal.
Net Zero
In late October 2021 and ahead of COP26 the LCIV became the first local authority
pension pool to announce a 2040 net zero emissions target, in line with the Paris
Agreement objectives to limit the global temperature rise to below 1.5 oC. It has set
interim targets for its investments that include a 35% reduction in carbon intensity by
2025 and 60% by 2030 across all fund ranges which it plans to achieve by
decarbonising existing funds through targeted engagement and launching new net
zero funds. Further detail is yet to be released, though officers have sought clarity on
the detail behind the targets to help assess their credibility.
PENSIONS BOARD
The Board last met on 20 October 2021 and considered the quarterly administration
performance report for the Fund as well as the latest risk register. Updates included:
 statistics on key administrative workflows in the latest quarter, usage of the
Fund website and the Member Self Service platform, and details of member
complaints and responses in the period; and
 the latest on the HM Treasury consultation on the cost control mechanism and
exit pay reform.
As set out in the Terms of Reference of both the Committee and Board, and as a
means of ensuring the good governance of the Fund, the Committee will work with
and receive and consider reports from the Board and ensure that appropriate actions
are undertaken as required. The Board can request information from the Committee
and make recommendations which should be considered, and a response made to
the Board on the outcome within a reasonable period of time.

2.10

The agreed process with the Committee and the Board is for these recommendations
to be made via officers and raised at the next available meeting where appropriate so
that the response or resolved action can be recorded in the meeting minutes.

2.11

The next meeting of the Board will take place on 26 January 2022.

Page 34

2.12

2.13

2.14

EXTERNAL AUDIT
At the time of writing, the Fund’s external audit has been completed subject to minor
disclosure amendments, and the auditors propose an unqualified audit opinion.
The draft statement of accounts was published on the Fund website as part of the
2020/21 Annual Report ahead of the statutory 01 December deadline. Once the
necessary amendments have been signed off by the auditors, the final iteration of the
accounts will be published on the website.
RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT – UNITED NATIONS LETTER
In late November 2021 a letter was sent to all LGPS Committee Chairs from a UN
Special Rapporteur, Michael Lynk, on the situation of human rights in the occupied
Palestinian Territory. It made several requests of the LGPS in respect of investments
in the 112 companies listed by the UN as involved in specified activities related to the
Israeli settlements in the Occupied Palestinian Territory, including divestment from
those companies if applicable.

2.15

The LGPS Scheme Advisory Board discussed the letter at its meeting on 13
December 2021 and agreed that the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board will engage
with the LAPFF Chair to discuss a proposed response to the letter on behalf of the
LGPS; they will also be meeting with Michael Lynk early in the new year. The Board
has recommended that LGPS funds may wish to wait for further clarification before
providing any individual responses, and also note that several FOI requests have
been submitted to LGPS funds in relation to this matter.

2.16

The Lambeth fund has already received an FOI in relation to the Fund’s holdings in
the 112 companies, and preliminary investigations indicate that the Fund has indirect
exposure of approximately £5.5m across 6 of the 112 companies on the UN list.

2.17

Officers will await the outcome of the SAB/LAPFF engagement with the UN and liaise
with our fund managers in the meantime to better understand our exposure.

2.18

2.19

ACTUARIAL UPDATE – SECTION 13 REPORT
Under Section 13 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, DLUHC are required to
carry out a review of all LGPS local fund valuations to ensure they comply with LGPS
regulations, that there is consistency between funds, and to test for solvency and
long-term cost efficiency. DLUHC commission the Government Actuary’s Department
(GAD) as the suitably qualified person to carry out this analysis; GAD works with
funds and their actuaries, including significant engagement with relevant funds, to
analyse valuations and report on progress against the evaluation criteria, making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate.
The Fund’s actuary, Hymans Robertson, submitted data to GAD on the Fund’s behalf
back in May 2020 in respect of the 2019 valuation; draft results of the analysis were
released by GAD in August 2021, and the final report was published in December
2021.

Page 35

2.20

The report confirmed that the Lambeth Pension Fund 2019 valuation satisfied all of
the review criteria, receiving green flags for all tests in respect of the solvency and
long-term cost efficiency of the Fund. In terms of the LGPS as a whole, the report
notes that:






Total LGPS assets grew from £217bn in 2016 to £291bn in 2019;
Total LGPS liabilities in 2019 amounted to £296bn and are growing much
faster than the size of the employers backing them ;
The aggregate funding level on prudent local bases improved from 85% in
2016 to 98% in 2019, due in large part to strong asset returns over the threeyear period.
The aggregate funding level on GAD’s best estimate basis is 109% at 2019
(using assumptions without allowance for prudence).

2.21

Based on local funding bases (i.e. using local assumptions) the Lambeth Fund was
valued at 82% funded in 2019, ranking it 82nd out of 88 funds (the top fund,
Kensington and Chelsea, was valued at 125%). However, based on a standard
funding basis which allows for a more like-for-like comparison to other funds,
Lambeth was ranked 45th at 107% funded, suggesting the Fund’s local funding basis
is, relatively, more prudent than other funds (the Fund is the 7th highest ranked fund
in respect of the percentage difference in funding levels between local and
standardised bases).

2.22

The report made a number of recommendations to be considered by the Scheme
Advisory Board and the actuaries ahead of the 2022 valuation process, mostly aiming
to improve reporting consistency between funds but also noting that future section 13
reports will consider how climate risk assumptions have been factored into the
valuation process.

2.23

2.24

TRAINING UPDATE
A selection of external conferences, workshops and other training opportunities has
been shared with members at Appendix Two; these events have been specifically
identified as relevant to the Fund and/or members’ interests. Should members decide
to attend any of the sessions or have identified other training they would like to
attend, please inform the Fund’s Governance and Compliance Officer Sarah
Hargraves (SHargraves@lambeth.gov.uk) so that member training records can be
updated.
These sessions form part of the main training offer to members; other sessions
arranged by fund managers or advisors will be held throughout the year and outside
of formal meetings in line with the Training Plan. It is vital that members continue to
develop and maintain their knowledge of the overall LGPS landscape to fulfill
statutory obligations and compliance requirements.

Page 36
2.25

Officers distributed a skills audit to members of the Committee in December 2021 as
a means of individual self-assessment against the key knowledge and skills
requirements set out by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA), to identify where tailored training may be targeted to address areas of
concern. The full results of the audit will be presented to the Committee at the next
meeting.

3
3.1

FINANCE
There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in this
report.

4
4.1

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
The Lambeth Pension Fund is run in accordance with the Local Government Pension
Scheme Regulations 2013 enacted along with other Regulations under the
Superannuation Act 1972 and the Public Service Pension Act 2013, and is for the
benefit of Council employees and outside organisations which have entered into an
agreement with Lambeth to provide pensions for their staff.

4.2

The Pension Committee must be mindful of their fiduciary duty to obtain the best
possible financial return on the investments it administers within the investment
strategy framework.

4.3

There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.

5
5.1

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
Not applicable.

6
6.1

RISK MANAGEMENT
Investment decisions involve taking risks that Members of the Committee should
always bear in mind. Generally, risk is taken to mean the variability of returns.
Investments with greater risk must usually promise higher returns than more ‘stable’
investments before investors will buy them. Members must consider the risk/reward
trade-off; generally, the higher the potential return expected the higher the associated
risk. Members in their capacity as Trustees bear that risk.

7
7.1

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
None for the purposes of this report.

8
8.1

COMMUNITY SAFETY
None for the purposes of this report.

9

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
None for the purposes of this report.

Page 37

9.2

Health
None for the purposes of this report.

9.3

Corporate Parenting
None for the purposes of this report.

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
None for the purposes of this report.

9.5

Responsible Procurement
None for the purposes of this report.

10
10.1

TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
Not applicable.

Page 38
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Andrew
Wilson, Cabinet
Member
Dami Awobajo,
Acting Strategic
Director
Christina Thompson,
Director of Finance
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director of
Finance
Andrew Pavlou,
Legal Services
Marianna Ritchie,
Democratic Services

Lambeth
directorate/
division or
partner

Date Sent

Date
Received

Finance and
Performance

20.12.2021

20.12.2021

Finance and
Investment

20.12.2021

05.01.2022

Finance and
Investment

20.12.2021

20.12.2021

Finance and
Investment

20.12.2021

29.12.2021

20.12.2021

22.12.2021

20.12.2021

22.12.2021

Legal and
Democratic
Services
Legal and
Democratic
Services

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from
Disclosure/confidential accompanying
report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

Comments
in para:

N/A
17 December 2021
5 January 2022
No
No
N/A
N/A
N/A
 Appendix One – LCIV Current
Fund Offering – November 2021
 Appendix Two – Suggested
Training Q1-Q2 2022.

Appendix One – LCIV Current Fund Offering at 30 November 2021

Page 39

*

Denotes committed amount

**

Denotes drawn amount

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix Two - Suggested Training/Events, Q1 2022 - Q2 2022
Date

Time

20/01/2022 All day
21/01/2022

Event

Cost & Additional
Information

Organiser

Location

Website

LGPS Governance Conference: Climate
Forecast for the LGPS - (Mc)Cloudy or Bright?

LGA

Highcliff Marriott
Hotel,
Bournemouth /
Online

£515 - full conference in
person (includes meals and
https://lgaevents.local.gov.uk/lga/frontend/reg/thome.csp
overnight accommodation)
?pageID=429899&eventID=1259&CSPCHD=001001000
£400 - full conference
000rJhcFLQdutehmC82mm5uaATNeEhBVkPMavA$9Z
online
Registration via website

15:30 16:50

LGPS-Live (Topical Update)

DG Publishing

Webinar

Free to attend: registration
https://lgps-live.com/nextwebinar/
via website

03/02/22

All day

LAPF Strategic Investment Forum

LAPF

Andaz Hotel,
Liverpool
Street, London

Free to attend: registration https://www.dgpublishing.com/lapf-strategic-investmentvia website
forum-february/

10/02/22

09:00 16:30

Climate Change Investment: Risk &
Opportunities for Pension Funds

The Dilly Hotel,
Free to attend upon
SPS Conferences Piccadilly,
request via website
London

08/03/22

10:25 12:45

Admin & Data Forum 2022

Professional
Pensions

London TBC

ESG Conference

PLSA

Online

Local Authority Pension Fund Investment &
Stewardship

The Dilly Hotel,
Free to attend upon
SPS Conferences Piccadilly,
request via website
London

LGC Investment Seminar

Local Government Carden Park,
Chronicle (LGC) Cheshire

09/03/2022 All day
10/03/2022
16/03/22

09:00 16:30

24/03/2022 All day
25/03/2022

Free to attend: registration
via website
Free to attend: registration
via website

£475 (includes
accommodation) before
21/01/2022, thereafter
£675

07/04/22

09:00 16:30

Secure Income & Infrastructure Investment for
Pension Funds

The Dilly Hotel,
Free to attend upon
SPS Conferences Piccadilly,
request via website
London

28/04/22

13:00 18:30

Local Authority Responsible Investment
Seminar

LAPF

19/05/22

09:00 16:30

Fiduciary Management & Investment
Governance Solutions

The Dilly Hotel,
Free to attend upon
SPS Conferences Piccadilly,
request via website
London

https://www.spsconferences.com/conference-detailsfebruary-10-2022
https://event.professionalpensions.com/adminanddatafo
rum/en/page/home
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/Conferences/ESGConference
https://www.spsconferences.com/conference-detailsmarch-16-2022

https://investmentseminar.lgcplus.com/inv/en/page/hom
e

https://www.spsconferences.com/conference-detailsapril-7-2022

Church House,
Free to attend: registration https://www.dgpublishing.com/the-local-authorityWestminster,
via website
responsible-investment-seminar/
London
https://www.spsconferences.com/conference-detailsmay-19-2022

Page 41

02/02/22

09/06/22

09:00 16:30

22/06/2022 All day
23/06/2022

ESG & Impact Investment for Pension Funds

The Dilly Hotel,
Free to attend upon
SPS Conferences Piccadilly,
request via website
London

Sustainable Investment Festival

Incisive Media

The Brewery,
Barbican,
London

Register interest via
website

https://www.spsconferences.com/conference-detailsjune-9-2022
https://sustainableinvestmentfestival.co.uk/sustainablein
vestmentfestival2022/en/page/home

Page 42

Page 43

Agenda Item 5

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 12 JANUARY 2022
Report title: ESG Beliefs – Survey Results
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director for Finance and Investment: Fiona
McDermott
Contact for Enquiries: Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
This report and the attached papers present the results of an Environmental, Social
and Governance (ESG) Beliefs survey which was issued to Committee members in
November 2021. The survey draws out a number of views held by members in the
context of a wider understanding of ESG, how ESG should be considered in
investment decision making, and the role that voting and engagement activity has to
play. Those views with most support will be used to draft a set of ESG investment
beliefs and incorporated into the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement when
updated later in 2022.

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in this
report.

1.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Committee identifies any additional specific ESG training needs that may
have come to light as a result of completing this survey and notify officers accordingly
so that appropriate training can be planned;
That the report, together with the information in the accompany papers, be noted.

Page 44

1.1

CONTEXT
The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016, specifically section 7(2)(e), requires administering authorities to
report on how environmental, social and corporate governance (ESG) considerations
are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, retention and realisation of
investments. As a long-term active investor, the London Borough of Lambeth
Pension Fund believes that ESG considerations are integral to the Fund’s strategy
and has committed to actively engaging and collaborating with its investment
managers and likeminded bodies to reduce ESG risks and responsibly invest in
sustainable opportunities.

1.2

The Fund has carried out a number of steps since October 2020 to develop and
improve its approach to responsible investment, climate change and stewardship,
which are summarised in the responsible investment timeline at Appendix One.

1.3

At the October 2021 Committee meeting members agreed that an updated Statement
of Investment Beliefs (SIB) be prepared to set out the overriding high-level principles
by which the Pensions Committee makes its investment decisions. Not only does the
SIB evidence good stewardship, but the review and agreement of ESG and climate
change-related beliefs in particular is a recommendation of the TCFD (Taskforce on
Climate-Related Financial Disclosures) reporting requirements.

1.4

In early November 2021 the Fund’s advisers Mercer issued an ESG Beliefs Survey,
to which all Committee members responded. The aim of the survey was to gauge
and formalise members’ views on issues of responsible investment and find a
consensus on which the Fund’s policies can be based. The results are explored in
more detail in the report attached at Appendix Two, whilst the following paragraphs
summarise the key findings.

2

PROPOSALS AND REASONS

2.1

ESG Understanding
75% of Committee members believe their understanding of ESG issues is fairly well
developed or better in the context of both investment risk and opportunity, with the
majority of members holding the view that ESG issues create both risk and
opportunity, each of which should be reviewed.

2.2

Half of the Committee believes that its current approach to managing ESG risks and
opportunities could go further and should be reviewed, the other half believing the
current approach is appropriate or are unsure. The majority of members see ESG
and stewardship as materially relevant to the best interests of the Fund’s
beneficiaries, and that by disregarding ESG concerns the Committee risks failing its
fiduciary responsibilities.

2.3

Of the ESG issues identified in the survey, Committee members’ highest priority is
investing in strategies that target long-term ESG themes on the basis that such

Page 45
opportunities will generate good risk-adjusted returns, as well as addressing climate
change risk. The lowest ranked priority was investor stewardship; however, members
commented that it was difficult to prioritise issues and that overall all were important.

2.4

ESG and Investment Decisions
88% of members most agree with the statement “Good management of ESG issues
is a key determinant of long-term shareholder value. It is therefore an essential
consideration for long-term investment decisions to help identify potentially material
financial issues and generate better risk adjusted returns.”

2.5

In terms of governance, most members (75%) believe it is up to investors to closely
monitor material ESG risks as an early indicator of wider management or financial
problems yet to emerge, and 88% are of the view that material environmental and
social factors should also be considered by shareholders to ensure long-term
benefits for the Fund.

2.6

Half of the Committee believe that climate change is already materially impacting
asset prices today and should be a current priority, whilst a quarter of the Committee
believe that climate risk will only have a gradual impact over multiple decades.

2.7

75% of Committee members feel only somewhat informed about climate change risks
and their relationship to investment decision making, members’ fiduciary duty and
their management of the Fund, though comments from members suggest this is more
a reflection of the wide scope of risks that require consideration.

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

Voting and Engagement
75% of members believe that all shareholders should vote their shares and engage
with portfolio companies as part of active ownership and wider stewardship duties
owing to beneficiaries.
63% of members believe that acting collectively with other investors is an effective
way to engage with companies and that without such collective action improvements
in management processes would often not occur.
Alignment of Interest and Reputation
88% of members believed there are certain ethical or moral considerations that the
Committee should also take into account; examples include:
 Weapons, pornography, tobacco, gambling;
 Resource extraction in conflict regions;
 Fair trade/supply chain issues; and
 Human rights issues, including modern slavery and gender equality.
75% of members most agree that the Committee should set clear expectations of its
investment managers and advisers on how ESG considerations are incorporated into
investment activities/advice.

Page 46

2.12

Recommendations and Follow-on Actions
Considering the results as summarised above and presented in Appendix Two,
officers will draft a core set of ESG beliefs that best reflect the Committee’s views,
and present them for approval at the next meeting for inclusion in the updated
Investment Strategy Statement.

2.13

Officers will undertake work to better understand the investment managers’
approaches to responsible investment and ESG, which will begin with a review of
ESG scoring and how best the Fund might capture a range of scoring approaches for
a more informed view of ESG integration; a paper on this subject will be brought to
the next meeting.

2.14

Officers recommend that the Committee identify any additional specific ESG training
needs that may have come to light as a result of completing this survey and notify
officers accordingly so that appropriate training can be planned.

3
3.1

FINANCE
There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in this
report.

4
4.1

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
The Lambeth Pension Fund is run in accordance with the Local Government Pension
Scheme Regulations 2013 enacted along with other Regulations under the
Superannuation Act 1972 and the Public Service Pension Act 2013, and is for the
benefit of Council employees and outside organisations which have entered into an
agreement with Lambeth to provide pensions for their staff.

4.2

The Pension Committee must be mindful of their fiduciary duty to obtain the best
possible financial return on the investments it administers within the investment
strategy framework.

4.3

There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.

5
5.1

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
Not applicable.

6
6.1

RISK MANAGEMENT
Investment decisions involve taking risks that Members of the Committee should
always bear in mind. Generally, risk is taken to mean the variability of returns.
Investments with greater risk must usually promise higher returns than more ‘stable’
investments before investors will buy them. Members must consider the risk/reward

Page 47
trade-off; generally, the higher the potential return expected the higher the associated
risk. Members in their capacity as Trustees bear that risk.
7
7.1

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
None for the purposes of this report.

8
8.1

COMMUNITY SAFETY
None for the purposes of this report.

9

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
None for the purposes of this report.

9.2

Health
None for the purposes of this report.

9.3

Corporate Parenting
None for the purposes of this report.

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
None for the purposes of this report.

9.5

Responsible Procurement
None for the purposes of this report.

10
10.1

TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
Not applicable.

Page 48

AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Andrew
Wilson, Cabinet
Member
Dami Awobajo,
Acting Strategic
Director
Christina Thompson,
Director of Finance
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director of
Finance
Andrew Pavlou,
Legal Services
Marianna Ritchie,
Democratic Services
Mercer (External)

Lambeth
directorate/
division or
partner

Date Sent

Date
Received

Finance and
Performance

20.12.2021

20.12.2021

Finance and
Investment

20.12.2021

05.01.2022

Finance and
Investment

20.12.2021

20.12.2021

Finance and
Investment

20.12.2021

29.12.2021

20.12.2021

22.12.2021

20.12.2021

22.12.2021

20.12.2021

20.12.2021

Legal and
Democratic
Services
Legal and
Democratic
Services
Consultant

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

Comments
in para:

N/A
17 December 2021
5 January 2022
No
No
N/A
N/A
N/A
 Appendix One – Responsible
Investment Timeline
 Appendix Two – ESG Beliefs
Survey

Page 49 Timeline
Appendix One - Responsible Investment
October
2020

Draft responsible investment plan agreed in principle; carbon
footprint exercise commissioned on the Fund’s equity holdings.

March
2021

Carbon footprint results presented to Committee, showing the
Fund is significantly above benchmark in terms of Weighted
Average Carbon Intensity (WACI) and potential future
emissions from exposure to fossil fuel reserves.
Committee agrees to align with the TCFD framework and
commits to becoming a signatory of the UK Stewardship Code.

July
2021

Fund commissions a climate change scenario analysis to meet
with TCFD requirements.

September

2021
October
2021

November

Training session – net zero alignment and the climate
transition.

Climate change scenario analysis presented to Committee;
identified that investing for a 2oC scenario is both an
imperative and an opportunity and that asset classes that
capture low carbon transition opportunities should be
prioritised.
The Committee agrees to set net zero targets, with long-term
and interim targets to be confirmed. It also agrees to update its
Investment Beliefs to accurately capture its ESG and climate
change-related beliefs.
Fund commissions updated carbon footprint and mapping of
decarbonisation pathways.
Submission made to the FRC for acceptance as a signatory to
the UK Stewardship Code.
ESG Beliefs survey issued to the Committee.

2021
January
2022

Results of ESG survey presented to Committee.
Informal workshop to be held with Committee, Board, actuary
and investment adviser to discuss ESG issues and net zero
targets.

February
2022

Expected results of Stewardship Code submission.

March
2022 and
onwards

Updated carbon footprint and decarbonisation pathways
presented to Committee.
Net zero targets formally announced.
Climate Change Strategy formulated.
First draft TCFD report presented to Committee.
2022 actuarial valuation – updated investment strategy
incorporating climate goals.

This page is intentionally left blank

ESG Beliefs Survey

December 2021

welcome to brighter

Page 51

London Borough of
Lambeth Pension Fund

Mercer is pleased to present the results from

The aim of the survey is to assist in understanding the range of
beliefs and views of the Committee on
and

2

Page 52

, that was conducted over October/November 2021 with
8 respondents.

ESG Understanding

Page 53

Well developed

63%

Fairly well developed

25%

Not well developed

Committee Comments:
• "The committee has been provided training and I am aware of ESG through my own research and
knowledge. I state that I am not well developed simply because one needs a maturity of
perspective from multiple angles when it comes to topics such as these."
• "Flow of funds into ESG funds is impacting valuations."
• "As a recently appointed member and attended one meeting thus far also my induction training"
• "I would find it hard to put into words but when discussed, I am not surprised or confused about
many issues"
• "I know enough to know that there is still more that I need to understand in this area. Whilst I
broadly understand the risks, issues and opportunities with focusing on ESG in our investments I
recognise that there are knock on consequences that are often harder to comprehend."

Page 54

13%

N=8

As a Committee Member, my view is that ESG
issues:
Create investment risk, which should be
measured and managed appropriately

13%

Drive new opportunities, which the Fund
should explore

13%

Create both risk and opportunity, each of
which should be reviewed
Create neither material risk nor opportunity
and should not be a priority at this time
N=8

Committee Comments:
• "Given the context of recent conversations around fossil fuels and driving the Fund to being
fossil fuel free is almost impossible. Consuming time on this takes time away from other
meaningful ways of long term investing."
• "Committee members lack the financial knowledge to understand the investment implications
of ESG issues, and should not be engaging in stock picking behaviour or similar."
• "WE DON'T DO SUFFICIENT!"

63%

13%
4

Please select the statement you most agree with.

25%

25%

ESG and stewardship are in the best interests
of the beneficiaries, they should be considered
regardless of financial materiality.

13%

Could go further, and should be reviewed

Don't know - I need more information to
develop a view as to whether ESG
considerations deserve more focus

N=8

ESG and stewardship could materially impact
the best financial interests of the Fund's
beneficiaries. The Committee risks failing in its
fiduciary responsibilities if it disregards ESG
concerns.

The responsibility lies with the Fund's
investment managers.

Page 55

50%

Is appropriate

63%

25%
N=8

Committee Comment:
• “ESG issues are being incorporated into our portfolio via our
managers in the same way as any other investment issue.”

Committee Comment:
• “ESG is predominantly a financial consideration like any other. It should be outsourced to
investment managers, whose performance should be monitored.”
5

6

•
•
•

1

25%

38%

0%

38%

0%

2

13%

25%

13%

13%

38%

3

25%

13%

0%

25%

38%

4

13%

13%

50%

25%

0%

5

25%

13%

38%

0%

25%

N

8

8

8

8

8

1 +2

38%

63%

13%

50%

38%

Climate change risk

Broad ESG risk management

Identifying exposure to sensitive areas (e.g.
controversial weapons)

Committee Comments:
•

Identifying
exposure to
sensitive areas

Investor stewardship (voting and
engagement)

N=8

Page 56

1=
1=
2
3
3
4

Investing in strategies that target long-term ESG themes (e.g. energy,
water, demographic trends) on the basic that such opportunities will
generate good risk-adjusted investment

Ranking

Investing in
Broad ESG
strategies that
Investor
Climate
risk
target long-term stewardship change risk
management
ESG themes

"ESG is complex and multi-faceted. The "E", "S", and "G" each require careful consideration. I strongly believe that a focus on impact investing or similar is inappropriate for the fund, it will inevitably lead to unnecessary risk concentration
and as such potentially lead to the fund breaching its fiduciary duty."
"Very difficult as with any ranking of things. Just because I put something lower down doesn't mean I think it isn't important - It is more important than many things just perhaps not as important as the ones I have ranked higher"
"I would include Climate change and a just transition to a different economic and business models that stabilises the amount of greenhouse gases being emitted and then reduces the amount of GHG in our atmosphere. Both these aspects
should be our priority. Fortunately many of the actions needed to be taken to reduce GHGs also result in greater social justice e.g. better insulated homes and fewer fossil fuel powered vehicles on or roads reducing air pollution."
"I did not want to prioritize as I consider all the above must be considered equally in the whole"

ESG and Investment Decisions

Page 57

8

respondents most agree with the statement:

most agree with

The total may not equal 100% due to rounding.

Committee Comments:
• "I have gone with the selection above because ESG has become a headline topic over
the years. Having said that, it may be similar to Black Lives Matter which has become
a headline topic with many organisations rushing to declare their visible support and
acknowledgement of what all sorts of diversity might bring to an organisation's overall
performance, but there are many who were already spearheading this movement and
there is a difference between surface level change and deeper structural change."
• "ESG is a risk/opportunity like any other. It is important that we feel confident our
managers treat it as such, but it is ultimately important because of the impact it can
have on fund performance. Managers are better placed than committee members to
judge how to incorporate it."
• "I think there is a swing towards funds that take seriously ESG matters. To invest in
anything else is risky."

25%

Investors should monitor material ESG risks
closely, as the consistent mishandling of ESG
issues is an early indicator of wider
management or financial problems that have
yet to emerge.
Company directors should focus on delivering
their company’s strategy and not be led by the
ESG-related views of the market. The“poor”
management of ESG issues is subjective and
investors interpret it differently.

Page 58

While

Shareholders should monitor key ESG
issues (e.g. board effectiveness and
accountability), as they have an oversight
role in relation to their investee companies.

75%

0%

N=8

Committee Comments:
• "ESG is an evolving topic. Risk is understood very differently by different people. Some may understand it
on a very mathematical level, others on a far more subjective basis."
• "Shareholders should be active stakeholders, but this should be done by managers and not by end
investors."

50%

In addition to governance issues, shareholders should
consider all relevant, material environmental and social
factors. This is a prudent approach to investment and
risk management and should result in long-term benefits
to the Fund, its members and the sponsor.

88%

25%
13%

25%
0%

The Committee should only focus on delivering the best
financial returns and closing the funding gap. All other
issues are a distraction.

N=8

9

Yes - as they drive new opportunities
which the Trustees should explore.

“Green” investments never make money
and it isn’t up to the Trustees to save
the world.
N=8

0%

No Committee Comments.

Indirectly and from a risk perspective,
they can provide return benefit. However,
it is down to our investment managers to
capture broader, value-adding
opportunities.

Page 59

ESG risks arising within the Fund's portfolio create
reputational risks for the Fund. On this basis alone the
Committee should be mindful of these issues when
making investment decision.

Yes - systemic, portfolio wide issues such
as climate change should be actively
monitored as they may be a source of
new return opportunities, as well as risk.

Committee Comments:
• "I needed to think deeper about the top two choices above and
reflect through my own private investments in addition to the
things I have been exposed to at Lambeth. In the end I chose
the second option because LBL has the duty to look at this
rather than leaving it solely to the investment managers."
• "Committee members have no training or experience to enable
them to judge where financial return comes from. Most would
struggle to define the concept of risk adjusted return."

10

Climate risk will only have a gradual impact over
multiple decades.

25%

Yes
Asset prices could change quickly in the
medium term, in recognition of the longer term
risks, and will need to be addressed now.

25%

Climate change risk is not relevant in the context
of the Fund.

Somewhat

75%

No

13%

These risks are irrelevant in
the context of the Fund

13%

50%

0%

N=8

Committee Comments:
• "I take a broad perspective on this. Having looked at asset prices for the past 15 yrs, I think they can
do anything in reaction to many things and whether Kenneth Fisher or my dog have opinions, will not
necessarily change my mind on broader multi-year themes."
• "It is a regulatory risk like any other."
• "Clearly already a huge issue, just look at COP26 and the focus there on financial issues and
institutions "
• "I feel certain the market is already shifting to reflect the risks of Climate and the Ecological
Emergency however in the medium term things are going to get really volatile as tipping points are
realised."

Page 60

Climate change is already materially impacting
asset prices today and should be a current
priority.

0%

N=8

Committee Comments:
• "I work at the Council and I listen to topics at the Pensions Committee meetings. I
come from a Chemical Engineering background and have always kept myself
informed about energy and developments. Having said that, relating this type of
knowledge to genuine appreciation of risks for the LBL Fund can be difficult. For
instance there can be analysis that shows star fund managers are very good at what
they do and analysis that shows a pin-the-tail-on-the-donkey approach can work
relatively well too."
• "The fund does not engage in stock picking at the committee level, nor should it. As
such these single name issues are irrelevant to the work of the committee."
• "I don't think anyone could ever say they were totally informed!"
• "This is such a huge area and I don't think anyone I know can feel fully adequately
informed about the risks mentioned let alone the impact on the financial markets and
fiduciary duty. That said I am reasonably well informed and 'somewhat' possibly
doesn't quite describe it."

Voting and Engagement

Page 61

Please select the statement
you most agree with:

Please select the statement
you most agree with:

25%

If shareholders are unhappy with the way a
company is being run they can simply “exit”
i.e. sell their shares.

0%

Voting is a useful means of communicating
with company management, especially for
minority shareholders. It should always be
considered, but is not a mandatory activity.

N=8

25%

63%

Collective engagement by shareholders
comes with high opportunity costs (time and
effort) and uncertain benefits (low probability
of success)

Page 62

75%

Shareholders have responsibilities. All
shareholders should vote their shares and
exercise their “voice” (i.e. engage with
portfolio companies) as part of their
stewardship (active ownership) duties to
beneficiaries.

13%

Collective engagement (i.e. working with
other like-minded investors) can be an
effective means of influencing companies
but should only be considered by the best
resourced and most informed investors.

Acting collectively with other investors is an
effective way to engage with companies,
especially for minority shareholders. Without
collective action, improvements in
management processes would often not
occur
N=8

Committee Comment:
• “Shareholders are owners and should act as such”

Committee Comment:
• “Collective action by shareholders to drive changes in management behaviour is
appropriate”

12

Alignment of Interest and Reputation

Page 63
13

88%
Yes

13%
No

Page 64

Yes includes:
•
Not listed as I think they are already being taken into account.
•
Certain weapons (cluster bombs etc), pornography, gambling, resource extraction in conflict regions.
•
Fair trade - supply chain issues
•
Human Rights What happens when there are conflicts, eg. when company has good environmental credentials but
dubious human rights track record?
•
I think that there are a number of industries that we should not be investing in. Key to those are fossil fuel extractors.
After that are high GHG intensive industries and the arms industry. There are also many industries that are creating
a lot of social injustice either by disrupting water or food supplies or destroying forests. Mining companies that are
destroying swathes of indigenous land and communities or using child labor. I think as a committee we need to have
more information about where our money is going and for us to discuss the ethics of that.
•
Companies invested in should be good employers.
•
Modern slavery, climate change, gender equality, conflict, products that harm health like tobacco, delivering a good
return for pension holders.

N=8
The total may not equal 100% due to rounding.

14

ESG expectations

15

Please select the statement you most agree with.

1. The Committee should not set
ESG expectations of investment
managers and advisers as they will
be hard to implement.

3. The Committee should set clear
expectations of its investment managers
and advisers on how ESG considerations
are incorporated into the investment
activities / advice. These should apply to all
asset classes and areas of advice.

Page 65

2. The Committee should be
pragmatic and set clear ESG
expectations only where these
issues are well understood and
known to have relevance to
investment outcomes.

75%

25%
0%

N=8

Committee Comments:
• "I needed to think more deeply about the second and third options above. I think option 3 works at a very high level - so for example, no investment in so called sin activities. I think option 2
works at a deeper level whereby the hard practicalities come to the fore."
• "The committee should ensure it selects asset managers who incorporate ESG issues into their investment process"
• "I have not been convinced that our investment managers are aligned with my views hence my choice above. I hope this questionnaire will help :)"

Member Views

Page 66

Which areas do you believe
are of more concern to
members?

100%

Governance

63%

Social

• "As with most surveys the options were quite limited and usually one
extreme or another whereas my choices would probably be a bit more
nuanced and I would have ended up going into too much detail if I had
used the comments box (a bit like this!) However it is a good starting
point in terms of the training sessions to follow, thank you! "

None of the above
N=8

Page 67

63%

0%

• "Thanks useful made me think. But need clearer explanation/information
on Mercers role i.e. can you be proxy active share holders?"

Environmental

• "Thank you for making me think further about these really important
issues. As I mentioned at the last meeting I am really concerned about
money going into property and housing and potentially disaffecting our
members through higher accommodation charges - even if that is
indirectly because our funds are not being invested directly in Lambeth."

*Respondents were allowed to indicate more than
one option, therefore the total may exceed 100%.
17

Key Findings

of respondents most agree with
statement

of respondents
believe there certain
ethical or moral
considerations the
Committee should take
into account.

Page 68

of Committee
Members believe that
area is
more concern to
members and employers
in the Fund.

When making
investment decisions.

18

Potential next steps

• Identify any additional specific ESG training needs and schedule ESG
training session(s)
• Continue work to agree and establish a credible net zero target

Page 69

• Update the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement and Responsible
Investment Policy
• Consider ways in which to better understand the investment managers’
approaches to RI & ESG

19

Data confidentiality standards
To ensure the confidentiality of all data, a minimum
number of observations is required in order for statistics
to be displayed.

Human Resource professionals who deal regularly with surveys are aware of the variance that
may exist in survey data. Data may fluctuate slightly from year to year due to changes in the
participant base. It is also important to note that within a sample, a significant amount of data
may be reported by one organization. It is also possible for data to change drastically from
year to year due to industry-related factors and economic conditions.

 Three organizations must report at least three
observations for a variable in order for the mean and
frequencies to be displayed.

Mercer is providing this survey information to its clients to permit them to make independent
decisions regarding salaries and benefits. Because the exchange of salary and benefit
information among competitors may be construed in certain circumstances as a means to
facilitate an antitrust violation, Mercer has taken appropriate steps in collecting and
disseminating this information in order to avoid such perceptions.

 Five organizations reporting at least five observations
are required to display 25th and 75th percentiles.
 In single-answer questions the total may not equal
100% due to rounding.

Page 70

 Four organizations and four observations are required
for display of the median.

The information and data contained in this report are for information purposes only and are not
intended nor implied to be a substitute for professional advice. In no event will Mercer be liable
to you or to any third party for any decision made or action taken in reliance of the results
obtained through the use of the information and/or data contained or provided herein.

 In multiple-answers questions organizations may
indicate more than one option, therefore the total may
exceed 100%.
 A double hyphen i.e. “--” has been indicated where
there are insufficient data for analysis

If you have questions regarding the survey or the report,
contact us at:

Tony.English@mercer.com

20

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 73
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 81
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 105
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 107
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 109
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 113
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 8

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 119
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

